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These programs are funded by grants and donations, so participants 
are not charged to participate.
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All assistance was provided to Franklin Housing Authority residents.

Community Housing Partnership of Williamson County, Habitat for Humanity 
Williamson-Maury, Hard Bargain Association also provide affordable housing.

Through networking at community events, the FHC works to develop relationships with 
individuals and corporate partners, which result in partnerships and donations. In addition, 
donations are solicited through FHC marketing and public relations efforts. See attached 
Annual Report.

47-0901382
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See attachment.

The Franklin Housing Authority strives to maintain a positive and productive relationship 
with the Franklin Police Department to ensure the safety of our residents and community. 
In addition, the FHC works with the City through the Housing Comission to serve in an 
advisory capacity for affordable housing.



No

The Franklin Housing Authority is overseen by HUD and has received High 
Performer status for its Public Housing and Section 8 programs. See attachment.

This year, our students are building and decorating bird houses to sell to raise 
awareness and funds for the scholarship program. 

The FHC provided self-sufficiency and homeownership programs for residents in 
addition to providing scholarship program participants with programming, which 
included college visits, museum visits, conflict resolution training and mentoring 
among other activities. See attachment.

5%

Case managers for the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) and Resident Opportunity  & 
Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) programs maintain client files and program data in addition 
to submitting to HUD annual reporting requirements.



FHC Resident Programs 

There are 32 participants currently in the homeownership program and 23 of them currently have 
escrow accounts through the Family Self-Sufficiency program. The escrow amounts range from 
$72 to $16,502. In the last year, we have had two participants move out of public housing. There 
are a total of 20 homeownership workshops held during the year.  The workshops are twice a 
month for an hour.  Each Workshop is designed to focus on a specific topic to educate and 
provide knowledge and awareness to the participants. Various topics are discussed from 
refocusing (changing your mind set), creating a support team, communication styles, 
understanding generational and situational poverty, understanding the pros/cons of banking, over 
drafting, credit cards, budgeting, saving, and comparison shopping (financial literacy), 
understanding your credit report and score, process of buying a home, (roles of lender, 
mortgager, realtor, appraiser, and  inspector, as well as each step up to closing), and how to 
maintain a home (green cleaners versus cleaning products on the market). 

The Franklin Housing Collaborative Scholarship is to help fill the gaps that other awarded grants 
and scholarships may not cover toward a student’s college education. The funds are available to 
be used during the time a student is enrolled in some form of higher education (2yr, 4yr or trade 
school). All students that successfully complete the program are granted a minimum of $1000 
per year of higher education and up to $5,000 per year. All high school students living within 
Franklin Housing Authority are eligible and must meet the criteria of being listed on the current 
lease, earn minimum 295 cumulative points throughout their four years of high school, and must 
enroll and attend a U.S. post-secondary institution directly after high school graduation. In 
addition to scholarships, participants are members of the Future is Ours (FOURS) Scholarship 
program. Programming is geared toward preparing students for their future and last year included 
college visits, museum visits, conflict resolution training, and mentoring, among other activities. 



U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT CENTER

Public Housing Assessment System (PHAS) Score Report for Interim Rule

25.00

Total Financial Score Unrounded (FASS Score - Audit Penalties)

2. Audit Penalties

PHAS Total Score

Capital Fund

Late Penalty Points

PHAS Indicators

PHA Name:

PHA Code:

Franklin Housing Authority

Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2014

TN035

Score
Maximum

Score

Report Date:

Designation Status: High Performer

80

Excluded

Excluded

20

78

RAD

RAD

20

10098

0

Initial publishedPublished 03/31/201603/31/2016

03/31/2016

1. FASS Score before deductions

Financial Score Details

Submission Type:
Maximum

Score

N/A

N/A

Score
Audited/A-133

25.00

90.00

10

5

10

2. Timeliness of Fund Obligation Points

Maximum
Score

40

Occupancy Rate:

Timeliness of Fund Obligation:

Capital Fund Score Details

3. Occupancy Rate % 100.00

4. Occupancy Rate Points

Total Capital Fund Score (Fund Obligation + Occupancy Rate):

1. Timeliness of Fund Obligation %

5

Score

5. PHAS Interim Rule website - http://www.hud.gov/offices/reac/products/prodphasintrule.cfm

Notes:

3. "0" FASS Score indicates a late presumptive failure. See 902.60 and 902.92 of the Interim PHAS rule.
4. "0" Total Capital Fund Score is due to score of "0" for Timeliness of Fund Obligation. See the Capital Fund

2. Due to rounding, the sum of the PHAS indicator scores may not equal the overall PHAS score.

1. The scores in this Report are the official PHAS scores of record for your PHA. PHAS scores in other systems are not to be
relied upon and are not being used by the Department.

N/A

N/A

5

5

10

Management

Financial

Physical



2017 
ANNUAL
REPORT



The mission of the Franklin Housing Authority is to help low-income families move forward by providing safe, decent, affordable housing 	
and self-sufficiency opportunities.

As I enter my 11th year with the Franklin Hous-
ing Authority, I am humbled by the hard work 
of my staff, the support of the City of Franklin 
and Williamson County, and the desire of many 
to make a difference in the lives of those less 
fortunate. Not only do we work every day to 
provide safe, decent and affordable housing, 
but through our programming we work to assist 
our residents with self-sufficiency. As I tell my 
staff, you have to have a servant heart or this 
business is not for you. 

I am hopeful for 2018 and the work head of us. I want to highlight several 
successes for 2017:

•	 Lease-up completed for the Reddick Street Apartments. This 64-unit 
development provided new affordable and low-income housing for a 
wide variety of families.

•	 The renovation began for our Park Street Apartments. This 22-unit 
site will be FHA’s first site that is not public housing nor a tax credit 
property.

•	 The FHA was awarded two major funding options: a $10 million Low 
Income Housing Tax Credit Award and a $500,000 Tennessee Housing 
Trust Fund Grant.   

•	 HUD approved the demolition of 13 units on Chickasaw and Shawnee 
in order to build home ownership units. 

•	 More students enrolled in our FOURS Scholarship Program.

This coming year will be an exciting one. We should break ground on a new 
48-unit senior building, continue our conversion from public housing to 
the Rental Assistance Demonstration program, lease-up our Park Street 
property and relocate residents from Chickasaw and Shawnee for the 
demolition. This is in addition to the work of our social services staff which 
helps our residents become self-sufficient.

As I have done since 2013, I close again with “Stay tuned, the best is yet to 
come!”

Our Mission

Message from President Derwin Jackson 



Message from Chairman Scott Black 
Each year when I write my message for the Annual 
Report, I am reminded of how honored I am to 
be the Commission Chairman for the Franklin 
Housing Authority. Not only do I serve with four 
fellow commissioners who are passionate and 
committed to our mission but I get to witness first-
hand the impact our housing and programming 
has on our neighbors. 

When Derwin Jackson was hired 10 years ago, we 
discussed our hopes and goals for the future. At 

that time, he said he would need to establish a social services program, as 
well as hire the right staff to accomplish these goals. The social services 
program is well established and he has assembled a very talented and 
committed staff. I am proud of the progress we are making and what 
the future holds for the organization. Our success would not be possible 
without the creativity and drive for success that he and his staff show in an 
effort to assist our residents and improve our community.

The FHA impacts families every day. We currently assist 725 people 
including the elderly, disabled and other families in our public housing 
developments, our tax credit developments and through the Section 8 
program. Many of these families are employed and working toward self-
sufficiency. We help to provide the resources and tools to help them achieve 
that self-sufficiency.

I look forward to 2018 and beyond 
as we work together with our 
partners, both for social services 
and for development, to continue 
to improve affordable housing and 
opportunities for self-sufficiency. 
We hope you will support us in our 
efforts. 

Scott Black, Chairman                    
Jen Porter Ross, Vice-Chairman                    
Darlene Morton                    
Ethel Scruggs
Donnell Lane

Martece Crawford, Maintenance Mechanic
John Davis, ROSS Coordinator
Aida Donovan, Receptionist
Robert Eddy, CFO
Katherine Edwards, Finance Manager
Heather Gatlin, Assistant Community Manager
Maurice Head, Maintenance Mechanic
Lindsi Mayfield Green, Executive Assistant

Marquisha Griffin, HCV Manager
Tena Hardy-Payne, Director of Housing Operations
Doug Johns, Director of Development and Maintenance
Susan Minor, Vice President-Operations 
Daniel Paz, Maintenance Mechanic
Chris Ward, ROSS Coordinator
Christina Woodard, Community Manager

2017 Board of Commissioners FHA Staff



Resident Services  
Self-sufficiency is a goal for FHA residents, and the housing authority has two staff members 
dedicated to assisting those residents. Participants are connected with resources and 
opportunities in the community so they might improve their lives and move from public housing 
and government assistance. Through the Resident Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) 
Program and the Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program, residents are offered programming 
either through FHA or through one of our many community partners.

The ROSS programs help with motivating families to improve their socio-economic status with 
the goal of gaining greater self-sufficiency by providing a variety of activities and training 
sessions. ROSS participants are given an opportunity to explore their various life tasks, 
decision- making skills and talents. 

Some of the ROSS programming in 2017 included:

•	 Hosting the 3rd Annual “Coats with Love” Event

•	 Participating in the “Get Real About Drugs” program, hosted by Leadership Franklin.  
This program also assisted residents in becoming more health conscious, by offering a 
Franklin Housing Authority Smoke Cessation meeting.

•	 Partnering with the American Jobs Center in efforts to provide basic computer skills 
classes to the residents in our community. These computer literacy courses are an ongoing 
opportunity for participants to gain expertise in utilizing technology, to improve their 
probabilities of achieving economic independence moving forward. 

•	 ROSS joined in the First Missionary Baptist “The People of Franklin Buying into the 
Franklin Community” Block Party event. 

•	 ROSS also teamed with Franklin Tomorrow, and participated in the series of “Walk MOORE 
with The Mayor” events over the course of the year. 

•	 Teamed with Williamson County Health Department in a 5K run for the community, at the 
Walk Across Williamson Celebration Event.



The FSS program is structured to enable participating families the opportunity to increase earned 
income, reduce or eliminate the need for welfare assistance, and make progress toward achieving 
economic independence and housing self-sufficiency.  This is done through one-on-one meetings 
with residents, as well as structured programming.

Highlights of the FSS program in 2017 were:

•	 Two residents moved from public housing into the private sector

•	 Residents and participants had the opportunity to engage in a College and Career Fair, 
which gave them the opportunity to explore higher education and employment opportunities. 

•	 Partnered with Against the Grain to educate participants on refocusing and identifying 
negative behaviors that can prevent success and make them want to give up. Positive 
reinforcement skills were identified and provided to assist the participant in being 
successful on the journey of self-sufficiency. Budgeting and saving were also focuses of the 
program. 

•	 Partnered with GraceWorks regarding understanding Generational vs. Situational poverty. By 
understanding the difference between the two poverties, a person can identify their situation 
and make the best choices to get out of the poverty cycle. 

•	 Partnered with Mortgage Solutions, BancorpSouth, US Bank, Benchmark, and Good 
Neighborhood Foundation to provide programming to educate the FSS participants 
on building credit, saving, budgeting and understanding how realtors, mortgagers, 
underwriters, inspectors and the home buying process works.  

•	 The FSS participants enjoyed the Tennessee Nutrition and Consumer Education Program 
(TNCEP) Safer Going Green presentation and the natural product gifts.



Redevelopment
Progress was made in 2017 on implementation of the Redevelopment Plan. Leasing was completed 
on the new 65-unit Reddick Street Apartments, and there continues to be a waiting list for units. 
Residents of the Reddick Street Apartments include families, senior citizens, and single parents. 

The $1.8 million renovation of the Park Street site began and will be completed in early 2018. This 
22-unit site contains 1, 2, and 3 bedroom units with the rehab being financed by a Community 
Investment Tax Credit loan, a $500,000 Tennessee Housing Trust Fund grant, a $220,000 
Federal Home Loan Bank grant, and a $93,000 energy grant from the Tennessee Department of 
Environment and Conservation.

The FHA received a $10 million Low Income Housing Tax Credit allocation that will provide funding 
for the construction of another 48-unit senior housing facility on vacant land near the Chickasaw 
site, adjacent to Jim Warren Park.  Construction is expected to begin in late 2018.

One area of the redevelopment plan includes the construction of homeownership units. In 2017, 
the FHA was approved for demolition of 13 units in the Chickasaw/Shawnee area. The current plan 
is to build homeownership units on this site.  All current residents on this site are being relocated 
and no family will be left without a residence.





Franklin Housing Collaborative
The FOURS Scholarship Program entered the third year of working with 
FHA high school students to ensure they have a path after they complete 
high school. Monthly programming is provided and is open to all FHA high 
school residents. 

•	 Participants had the opportunity to engage in a College and 		
	 Career Fair, which provided information regarding higher education 	
	 and employment opportunities. 

•	 Participants became CPR certified through Hands to Heart. 

•	 Participants toured two universities, Austin Peay State University and Western Kentucky 
University.

•	 One of the FOURS participants graduated and was able to enter into the workforce.

•	 Participants attended “Love is Not Abuse,” a Teen Dating Violence Awareness program hosted 
by Mercy Community Healthcare. 

•	 Participants attended the Fisk Jubilee Singers concert hosted by Battle Ground Academy at 
Franklin First United Methodist Church.

•	 FHA Board members Darlene Morton and Scott Black shared their stories and gave 
encouraging words to the participants on being responsible and being true to you.  

•	 BancorpSouth presented information to the participants regarding checking accounts, credit 
cards, credit scores (how credit scores may affect you in your life now and in the future), along 
with other financial topics.   

•	 $14,000 was raised for the scholarship program. 

If you would like to get involved with this nonprofit or make a contribution to the FOURS Scholarship 
Fund, contact Susan Minor, Vice President-Operations at sminor@franklinhousingauthority.com



Elevating Lives 
Sometimes when tragedy strikes, an unexpected opportunity presents itself.

Christa Mackrell and her young son, Noah, were displaced by an apartment 
fire in 2016. Knowing there was a shortage of affordable rental housing, 
she wasn’t sure what she was going to do. When she found out about the 
new Reddick Street Apartments, she applied immediately and was one of 
the first residents to move in.

Christa grew up in Franklin, loves it here, and wants her son to be raised 
in her hometown. She is a single working mom with a love for playing the 
violin. She has been a dental assistant for several years, but would love 
to someday play the violin full-time. Coming from a musical family, music 
has always been part of her life and this has rubbed off on Noah. He is 
also interested in music and is learning to play the drums. At his age, he 
doesn’t realize he is learning an instrument as, to him, he is just getting to 
bang on something that makes noise.  Christa loves to accompany Noah on 
the piano, while he plays the drums. 

Christa and Noah were featured in the holiday video sent out from the FHA 
in December. In the video, Christa says she considers it a blessing to be 
able to live at Reddick Street Apartments. In her words, she is thankful to 
have a safe, nice and awesome place to live.

This is just one story of the impact the Franklin Housing Authority is having 
on the residents of our community and allowing families to raise their 
children in a caring, safe environment. There will be many more of these 
types of stories as we continue to reshape the face of affordable housing in 
Franklin.



Community Events and Programming 2017

In addition to the events conducted through the ROSS program, several churches and community organizations also held events to assist and interact 
with residents.

Adult Learning Center 
Against the Grain
BancorpSouth
Barefoot Republic
Bridges Domestic Violence Center
City of Franklin
Columbia State Community College
Community Counseling Services, Inc. (CCSI) 
Community Housing Partnership of Williamson 	
	 County
Crosspoint Church
Dolly Parton Imagination Library 
Fifty Forward
First Missionary Baptist Church
Fisk University

Franklin Church of Christ
Franklin Housing Authority Residents’ Council
Franklin Police Department
Franklin Special School District
Franklin Synergy Bank
Franktown Open Hearts
GAP Community Development Resources, Inc. 
Good Neighbor Foundation
Goodwill Career Solutions
Graceworks Ministries, Inc.
Habitat for Humanity of Williamson County
Hard Bargain Association 
Hodges & Fooshee 
Image Builders
Leadership Franklin

Limestone Baptist Church
Mercy Community Healthcare
Mid-Cumberland Community Action Agency 
Mortgage Solutions
Nashville Food Project
New Hope Academy
OneGenAway 
Phi Beta Sigma Fraternity, Inc
ProHealth Medical Center
Psi Phi Zeta Chapter of Williamson County
Redemption City Church
Regions Bank
Rolling Hills Community Church
Strong Tower Bible Church
SunTrust Bank

Tennessee State University
The Guidance Center
Tennessee Nutrition and Consumer 
	 Education Program (TNCEP)
United Way of Williamson County 
U.S. Bank
Williamson County Adult Education
Williamson County Family Resource Center
Williamson County Health Department
Williamson County Public Library
Williamson County School System
Workforce Essentials/Williamson County American 	
	 Jobs Center
YMCA - YCAP

Children:
Conflict Resolution Program
Elks Lodge Christmas Party 
FOURS Scholarship Program
High School Tutoring
Ice Cream Social
On-site computer lab
On-site library with free books for families
Parent and student meetings with WCS 		
	 Superintendent and Centennial High School  
 

Partnership for Drug-Free Kids
Summer Meal Program for children 
TNCEP Tasty Days
FOURS Scholarship Program:
College Tours 
Fisk Jubilee Concert 
Girls to the Moon 
Hands to Heart CPR Certification 
“Love is Not Abuse” Teen Dating Violence 	
	 Awareness Program

Adults:
American Jobs Center Basic Computer Skills Class  
Basic Financial Training
Cherokee/Chickasaw Redevelopment Meetings
Computer Classes
Escrow Accounts for FSS participants 
First Missionary Baptist “The People of Franklin 	
	 Buying into the Franklin Community 
	 Block Party”
Franklin Tomorrow’s “Walk MOORE with the 	
	 Mayor” Events 

Housekeeping Classes
Job Fair
Living Well with Chronic Conditions Workshop 
Neighborhood Watch program
OneGenAway Food Giveaways
Nashville Food Project Food Giveaways 
Parenting Classes
Park Street Relocation Meetings
ROSS/FSS Clothes Closet
Spring Street / Johnson Circle Relocation 		
	 Meetings

Resource Partners
As the FHA works to provide opportunities for residents to become self-sufficient, our partnerships and community support are vital. We rely on existing 
programs, when possible, in an effort to maximize resources. We also rely on the generosity of other supporters for financial and in-kind support. Thank 
you to those that support our residents and our mission.



Franklin Housing Authority Annual Report Data CY2016 CY2017

FHA Housing Units 231 231

People in FHA Housing 512 506

Minor Children 206 219

Elderly (62+), Disabled, Handicapped Head of Households 107 69

Female Heads of Household 184 181

Male Heads of Household 43 43

Households Receiving Public Assistance (Includes AFDC & SSI, but not SS, Railroad Retirement or Private Pension Funds) 85 83

Income Consisting of Both Public Assistance & Earned Income/Child Support/Other Source 120 144

Families on "0" (Zero) Income 22 19

Average Monthly Rent $288 $393

Average Family Income (Annual) $13,517 $13,340

FHA's Fiscal Year End Rental Income (Includes Rents, Utilities, and Other Charges) $829,200 $819,756 

Operating Subsidy from HUD $853,075 $908,547

Grants $479,000 $557,000

Amount Owed to City of Franklin in Lieu of Taxes $23,239 $25,695

Approximate Number of Applicants on File 99 106

Homeless Units 4 3

Vouchers Administered Including PBV 95 95

Section 8 Information CY2016 CY2017
Vouchers leased as of 12/31 25 34

Avg. rent paid by tenant $280 $298

Avg. HAP payment (to landlord) $559 $382

Number of landlords participating 19 19

Tax Credit Information - CY2017

Elderly Family Total

Number of Units 48 65 113

Number of Residents 51 168 219

Average Family Income $13,483 $22,636 $18,060

Average Monthly Rent $617 $729 $673

Number of Applicants 130 137 267



Franklin Housing Authority

200 Spring Street
Franklin, Tennessee 37064 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
To the Board of Commissioners 
Franklin Housing Authority 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the financial statements of the Franklin Housing Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial 
statements of Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. and Reddick Street Associates I, L.P., which represent one-hundred 
percent of the assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial statements 
were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included for Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. and Reddick Street Associates I, L.P., is based solely on the report of the 
other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions  
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position of the Authority, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and analysis on 
pages 4-8 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance.  
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Other Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that comprise the Authority’s basic 
financial statements. The accompanying supplemental data including the roster of officials and the financial data schedule are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and are not 
a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  
 
The roster of officials, the financial data schedule and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the roster of officials, the financial data schedule and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2017 on our consideration of 
the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
 
Birmingham, AL 
June 29, 2017 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
Franklin Housing Authority’s (the “Authority”) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to (a) assist the 
reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the Authority’s financial activity, (c) identify 
changes in the Authority’s financial position, and (d) identify issues or concerns.  U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) requires the inclusion of this MD&A section as required supplementary information. 
 
Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, please read it 
in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• Net position at December 31, 2016, increased to $8,687,188.  Since the Authority engages only in business-type 
activities, the increase is all in the category of business-type net position.  Net position was $7,746,949 for 2015. 

• The business-type activities operating revenue at December 31, 2016, increased to $3,737,162.  Total operating revenue 
was $2,747,557 for 2015. 

• The total operating expenses of all programs for December 31, 2016, increased to $3,071,384.   Total operating 
expenses were $2,994,713 for 2015. 

• Total capital contributions at December 31, 2016, increased to $182,136.  Total capital contributions were $120,631 for 
2015. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
For accounting purposes, the Authority is classified as an enterprise fund.  Enterprise funds use the full accrual basis of 
accounting.  The enterprise method of accounting is similar to accounting by the private sector.   
 
This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial statements. 
 
The following statements are included: 
 

• Statement of Net Position – This statement reports all financial and capital resources for the Authority.  The statement 
is presented in the format where assets plus deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources equal “Net Position”, formerly known as Net Assets or Equity.  Assets and Liabilities are presented in order 
of liquidity, and are classified as “Current” (convertible into cash within one year), and “Non-Current”. 
 

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets – This component of Net Position consists of all capital assets, reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings, that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  

2. Restricted Net Position – This component of Net Position consists of restricted assets when constraints 
are placed on the assets by the creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, 
regulations, etc.  

3. Unrestricted Net Position – This component of Net Position consists of assets that do not meet the 
definition of “Net Investment in Capital Assets” or “Restricted Net Position”.  
 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Position – This statement includes operating revenues, such as 
rental income, net and federal grants, operating expenses, such as administrative, utilities, maintenance, and 
depreciation.  This statement also includes non-operating revenues and expenses, such as capital grant revenue, 
investment income, and interest expense. 
 

• Statement of Cash Flows – This statement discloses net cash provided by, or used for, operating activities, non-capital 
financing activities and from capital and related financing and investing activities.  

 
Programs 
 
Conventional Public Housing – Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority rents units that it owns to low-
income households.  The Conventional Public Housing Program is operated under an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with 
HUD, and HUD provides operating subsidy and capital grant funding to enable the Authority to provide the housing at a rent that 
is based upon 30% of household income (as defined in the HUD regulations).   
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Capital Fund Grants – The Authority’s capital funds are received from the federal government through a formula driven 
computation.  These funds are used to upgrade our facilities at various developments to give our residents the decent and safe 
living environment they need.  Each year’s grant funds must be entirely obligated within two years of inception of the grant, and 
entirely expended within four years. 
 
Housing Choice Voucher Program - Under the Housing Choice Voucher Program, the Authority contracts with independent 
landlords that own the property.  The Authority subsidizes the family’s rent through a Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) made 
to the landlord.  The program is administered under an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD.  HUD provides Annual 
Contributions funding to enable the Authority to structure a lease that sets the participant’s rent at 30% or up 40% of household 
income. 
 
Community Services Grants – Community Services Grants include the Resident Opportunities and Self-Sufficiency (ROSS) 
Grants and Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) Program Coordinator Grants, which are structured to encourage resident economic 
self-sufficiency through educational, training, and employment opportunities, with an emphasis on early years and school 
readiness in order to afford an opportunity for the best start possible. 
 
Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) Program – The Authority was awarded, through a competitive process, the ability to 
convert a portion of its current and prior public housing units to Section 8 project based vouchers.  This new initiative from HUD 
is known as the Rental Assistance Demonstration program or RAD. 
 
RAD offers a long-term, cost effective solution to preserve and enhance the country’s public and affordable housing stock— 
including leveraging public and private funding to make much-needed improvements—by allowing Public Housing Authorities 
(PHA) to convert their current assistance to long-term project-based Section 8 contracts.  
 
To date, the Authority has converted 62 units of public housing to limited partnership ownership with project based Section 8 
rental subsidy. The Authority is currently in the process of converting additional public housing units via RAD which are in 
various stages of the conversion process. 
 
Component Units: 
 
Franklin Housing Collaborative – Blended component unit of the Authority. It has been blended with the Authority and shares its 
management and Board members. The component unit is included in the consolidated financial statements of the primary 
government and transactions have been eliminated between the Authority and Franklin Housing Collaborative.  There are no 
separate financial statements available. 
 
Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. and Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. – Discretely presented component units of the 
Authority.  No transactions have been eliminated between the Authority and these discretely presented component units. Separate 
audited financial statements are available upon request to the Authority. Also, while the Authority’s financial statements include 
these discretely presented component units in separate columns, the following financial overview focuses on the primary 
government and does not address the effects of these discretely presented component units on the Authority’s operations.  
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
 
TABLE 1 – STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

2016 2015 Variance % Change
Current Assets 1,629,055$          1,475,122$          153,933$             10.44%
Capital Assets, Net 5,303,942 5,270,127            33,815                 0.64%
Other Noncurrent Assets 2,593,416            1,654,625            938,791               56.74%
Total Assets 9,526,413            8,399,874            1,126,539            13.41%

Current Liabilities 519,923 422,006               97,917                 23.20%
Noncurrent Liabilities 319,302               230,919               88,383                 38.27%
Total Liabilities 839,225               652,925               186,300               28.53%

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 5,303,942 5,270,127            33,815                 0.64%
Restricted 175,508 77,862                 97,646                 125.41%
Unrestricted 3,207,738            2,398,960            808,778               33.71%
Total Net Position 8,687,188$          7,746,949$          940,239$             12.14%

 
MAJOR FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

 
Current assets increased by $153,933 due, in majority, to an increase in accounts receivable for developer fees earned but not yet 
received, partially offset by a decrease in investments and inventories, net. 
 
Capital assets, net increased by $33,815 due to current year capital assets purchases exceeding current year depreciation expense.   
 
Other noncurrent assets increased by $938,791 primarily due to an increase in noncurrent notes receivables for loans provided by 
the Authority to their discretely presented component units. See Note 11 to the Financial Statements for further details.  
Additionally, this category increased due to a $100,000 deferred developer fee being recorded. 
 
Current liabilities increased $97,917 due to an increase in unearned revenues, accrued liabilities and the current portion of loans 
liability, partially offset by a decrease in vendor payables, accrued wage/payroll taxes payable and PILOT liabilities. 
 
Noncurrent liabilities increased $88,383 due to an increase in the noncurrent portion of FSS escrowed liabilities and the 
noncurrent portion of loans liability. 
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TABLE 2 – STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
 

The following table reflects the revenues and expenses as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
 

2016 2015 Variance % Change
Operating Revenues

Rental Income, Net 925,511$               843,785$               81,726$                9.69%
Federal & Other Government Grants 2,290,049 1,691,227 598,822                35.41%
Other 521,602                212,545                309,057                145.41%

Total Operating Revenues 3,737,162              2,747,557              989,605                36.02%

Operating Expenses
Administration 1,071,424 905,247 166,177                18.36%
Tenant Services 113,337                135,648                (22,311)                 -16.45%
Utilities 541,388                547,268                (5,880)                   -1.07%
Maintenance 538,724                524,192                14,532                  2.77%
General 180,476 148,925 31,551                  21.19%
Housing Assistance Payments 212,390                298,344                (85,954)                 -28.81%
Depreciation 413,645                435,089                (21,444)                 -4.93%

Total Operating Expenses 3,071,384              2,994,713              76,671                  2.56%

Operating Income (loss) 665,778                (247,156)               912,934                -369.38%

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest Revenue 92,325                  78,407                  13,918                  17.75%
Capital Contributions 182,136                120,631                61,505                  50.99%

Total Nonoperating Activity 274,461                199,038                75,423                  37.89%

Change in Net Position 940,239                (48,118)                 988,357                -2054.03%

Beginning Net Position 7,746,949              7,795,067              (48,118)                 -0.62%

Ending Net Position 8,687,188$            7,746,949$            940,239$               12.14%

 
MAJOR FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET 
POSITION 
 
The Authority had an increase in net position of $940,239 this year versus a decrease in net position of $48,118 in the prior year. 
This increase in net position this year was primarily due to an increase in operating and nonoperating revenues in excess of the 
increase in operating expenses.  
 
The Authority had an operating income of $665,778 including non-cash depreciation expense of $413,645 versus an operating 
loss of $247,156 and depreciation expense of $435,089 in the prior year. 
 
Total operating revenue increased by $989,605 to $3,737,162 due to an increase in rental income net of bad debt expense, an 
increase in HUD PHA operating grant revenue in the Low Rent, CFP, and HCV Programs, an increase in the Housing Trust Fund 
loan liability forgiven this year, and an increase in other revenue related to the recognition of developer fees from the 
development of affordable housing.   
 
Total operating expenses increased by $76,671 to $3,071,384 due to an increase in administration expense resulting from an 
increase in administrative salaries and benefits, as well as small increases in maintenance and other general expenses, partially 
offset by a decrease in tenant services expenses resulting from a decrease in tenant services salaries and benefits, as well as a 
decrease in HCV Program Housing Assistance Payments and depreciation expenses.   
 
Capital contributions increased by $61,505 to $182,136 due to an increase in ongoing construction and modernization projects. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
As of December 31, 2016, capital assets for its business-type activities were $5,303,942, net of accumulated depreciation. Capital 
assets include land, buildings, improvements, equipment and construction in progress. 
 
Major capital asset purchases during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 

• Predevelopment costs associated with the Spring Johnson RAD conversion 
• Site design on Cherokee Redevelopment 
• 2016 Nissan Rogue 
• Furniture for community center 
• Viewsonic projector 

 
There were no major capital asset disposals during the current fiscal year. 
 
DEBT OUTSTANDING 
 
As of year-end, the Authority had $550,000 in loan liability outstanding compared to $400,000 last year, an increase of $150,000. 
This loan liability is in the form of Housing Trust Fund loans received from the Tennessee Housing Development Agency that 
the Authority turned around and loaned to Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. and Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. for the 
redevelopment and conversion of a portion of the Authority’s public housing inventory to tax credit Rental Assistance 
Demonstration projects.  
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS 
 
Significant economic factors affecting the Authority are as follows: 
 

• Federal funding of the Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
• Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates. 
• Local inflation, recession and employment trends, which can affect resident incomes and therefore the amount of rental 

income. 
• Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies and other costs. 

 
FINANCIAL CONTACT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances for all those with an interest in the Authority’s 
finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional information should be 
addressed to Robert Eddy, CPA, Chief Financial Officer, Franklin Housing Authority, (615) 794-1247. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 

 Primary 
Government 

 Senior Residence at 
Reddick Street 

Asssociates I, LP 
 Reddick Street 

Associates I, LP 
ASSETS
Current assets:

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 364,980$             6,780$                     23,757$                
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 256,631               1,142,910                 472,814                
Investments 647,871               -                              -                          
Due from HUD 37,018                 -                              -                          
Miscellaneous receivable 215,436               -                              47,100                  

45,357                 31                           6,645                   
Accrued interest receivable 8,329                   -                              -                          

-                         -                              -                          
Prepaid expenses and other assets 12,367                 6,756                       -                          

41,066                 -                              -                          

Total current assets 1,629,055             1,156,477                 550,316                

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 881,094               50,000                     -                          
Buildings and equipment, net of depreciation 4,422,848             5,631,075                 13,437,770            

  Total capital assets 5,303,942             5,681,075                 13,437,770            

Notes receivable, net of current portion 2,493,416             -                              -                          
Other noncurrent assets 100,000               43,051                     90,895                  

Total noncurrent assets 7,897,358             5,724,126                 13,528,665            

Total assets 9,526,413$           6,880,603$               14,078,981$          

Fraud recovery receivable, net of allowance of 
$9,886, $0, & $0, respectively

Tenants receivable, net of allowance of $4,846, $0, 
& $0, respectively

Inventories, net of allowance of $4,563, $0, & $0, 
respectively

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 

 Primary 
Government 

 Senior Residence at 
Reddick Street 

Asssociates I, LP 
 Reddick Street 

Associates I, LP 
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 37,925$               61,486$                    1,328,696$            
Accrued liabilities 55,367                 273,578                    27,577                  
Intergovernmental payables 30,840                 41,272                     -                          
Tenant security deposits 23,635                 10,529                     11,875                  
Unearned revenue 31,337                 2,976                       819                      
FSS escrowed liabilities, current portion 25,028                 -                              1,385,432             
Compensated absences, current portion 15,791                 -                              -                          
Loan liabilities, current portion 300,000               -                              -                          
Notes payable, current portion -                         -                              8,418,244             

Total current liabilities 519,923               389,841                    11,172,643            

Noncurrent liabilities:
FSS escrowed liabilities, net of current portion 36,842                 -                              -                          
Compensated absences, net of current portion 32,460                 -                              -                          

Noncurrent liabilities - other -                         -                              410,305                

Loan liabilities, net of current portion 250,000               -                              -                          

Notes payable, net of current portion -                         1,250,000                 955,800                

Total noncurrent liabilities 319,302               1,250,000                 1,366,105             

Total liabilities 839,225               1,639,841                 12,538,748            

NET POSITION
Investment in capital assets 5,303,942             4,431,075                 4,063,726             
Restricted 175,508               1,132,381                 460,939                
Unrestricted 3,207,738             (322,694)                  (2,984,432)            

Total net position 8,687,188$           5,240,762$               1,540,233$            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 

 Primary 
Government 

 Senior Residence at 
Reddick Street 

Asssociates I, LP 
 Reddick Street 

Associates I, LP 
OPERATING REVENUES

925,511$         172,850$                 22,864$                
Federal & other government grants 2,290,049        105,979                   -                          
Other 521,602          2,361                      750                      

Total operating revenues 3,737,162        281,190                   23,614                 

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 1,071,424        124,969                   44,052                 
Tenant services 113,337          701                         -                          
Utilities 541,388          60,717                    -                          
Maintenance 538,724          56,881                    -                          
General 180,476          125,309                   135,066                
Housing assistance payments 212,390          -                             -                          
Depreciation 413,645          317,575                   80,834                 

Total operating expenses 3,071,384        686,152                   259,952                

Operating income (loss) 665,778          (404,962)                 (236,338)              

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest revenue 92,325            564                         -                          
Interest expense -                    (70,476)                   (1,066)                  

Income (loss) before contributions 758,103          (474,874)                 (237,404)              

Capital contributions 182,136          -                             -                          

Change in net position 940,239          (474,874)                 (237,404)              

Total net position - beginning of the year 7,746,949        7,563,295                1,777,637             

Prior period adjustments -                    (1,847,659)               -                          

Total net position - beginning of the year, as restated 7,746,949        5,715,636                1,777,637             

Total net position - end of the year 8,687,188$      5,240,762$              1,540,233$           

Rental income, net of bad debts of $26,823, $728, & $0, 
respectively

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 

 Primary 
Government 

 Senior Residence 
at Reddick Street 
Asssociates I, LP 

 Reddick Street 
Associates I, LP 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from tenants 911,801$         173,675$               28,913$             
Federal grants & Other Government Grants 2,305,668         105,979                -                       
Other receipts 309,542           2,554                    750                   
Payments to suppliers and Section 8 landlords (1,843,706)       (323,402)               (190,852)            
Payments to or on behalf of employees (1,191,446)       (61,999)                 -                       

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 491,859           (103,193)               (161,189)            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets (447,464)          -                          (8,079,163)          
Capital contributions 179,458           -                          -                       
Proceeds from capital debt 450,000           -                          8,678,434           
Interest payments on capital debt -                     (5,968)                   -                       

 
Net cash provided (used) by capital 

financing activities 181,994           (5,968)                   599,271             

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest revenue 681                 564                      -                       
Proceeds from sale of investments 143,818           -                          -                       
Issuance of note receivable (754,569)          -                          -                       

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (610,070)          564                      -                       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents 63,783             (108,597)               438,082             

Balances - beginning of the year 557,828           1,258,287              58,489               

Balances - end of the year 621,611$         1,149,690$            496,571$            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 

 Primary 
Government 

 Senior Residence 
at Reddick Street 
Asssociates I, LP 

 Reddick Street 
Associates I, LP 

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (loss) 665,778$         (404,962)               (236,338)            
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 413,645           317,575                80,834               

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (235,879)          1,602                    (6,645)                
Inventories, net 21,620             -                          -                       
Prepaids and other assets 1,882               21                        -                       
Assets held for resale -                     -                          -                       
Other assets (100,000)          49,731                  (64,895)              
Accounts payable (31,891)            (78,084)                 41,348               
Intergovernmental payables (21,854)            11,446                  -                       
Unearned revenue 27,926             (17)                       819                   
Other liabilities (278,455)          62                        11,813               
Accrued liabilities 20,143             -                          -                       
Compensated absences 8,464               -                          -                       
Tenant security deposits 480                 (567)                     11,875               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 491,859$         (103,193)$             (161,189)$          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of the Franklin Housing Authority (the “Authority”) have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
Authority has previously implemented GASB Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis – for State and Local Governments.  Certain significant changes in the statements are as follows:  The financial 
statements will include a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the Authority’s 
overall financial position and results of operations.   
 
The Authority is a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type activities and therefore, presents only the financial 
statements required for enterprise funds, in accordance with GASB Statement 34, paragraph 138.  For these governments, basic 
financial statements and required supplemental information consist of: 
 

• Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
• Enterprise fund financial statements consisting of – 

 Statement of Net Position 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
 Statement of Cash Flows 

• Notes to financial statements 
• Required supplemental information other than MD&A 

 
The Authority has multiple programs which are accounted for in one enterprise fund, which is presented as the “enterprise fund” 
in the basic financial statements.  Significant Authority policies are described below. 
 
A.  The Reporting Entity 
The Authority was established as a tax-exempt quasi-governmental entity under the United States Housing Act of 1937 for the 
purpose of providing affordable housing to low and moderate income families in Williamson County, Tennessee.  The governing 
body of the Authority is composed of a 5 member appointed Board of Commissioners (the “Board”).  The Mayor appoints the 
Board, who in turn hires the Executive Director.  The Authority is governed by its charter and by-laws, state and local laws, and 
federal regulations.  The Board is responsible for the establishment and adoption of policy.  The execution of such policy is the 
responsibility of the Authority’s management.  
 
For financial reporting purposes, the financial reporting entity consists of (1) the primary government (the “Authority”), (2) 
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable and (3) other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationships with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the primary government’s 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  The Authority is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of 
an organization’s governing body and (a) it is able to impose its will on the organization or, (b) there is potential for that 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the Authority.  The Authority may 
be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the Authority. Based on these criteria; the following entities 
have been identified as component units of the Authority. 
 
Franklin Housing Collaborative 
Franklin Housing Collaborative (FHC) is a 501(c)(3) tax exempt not for profit organization, whose mission is to promote decent, 
safe and sanitary housing for persons of low-income or the elderly or infirmed in the State of Tennessee. It can also form 
partnerships and currently acts as a partner in each of the following partnerships.  
 

• Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. – FHC acts as a Class B Limited Partner. FHC has a .005% ownership interest 
in Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. 

• Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. – FHC, through FHC Reddick, Inc., a for profit corporation in which FHC is the sole 
shareholder, indirectly acts as a General Partner in Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. FHC has a .009% ownership 
interest in Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. 

• Spring Johnson, L.P. – FHC, through FHC Spring Johnson, Inc., a for profit corporation in which FHC is the sole 
shareholder, indirectly acts as a General Partner in Spring Johnson, L.P. FHC has a .01% ownership interest in Spring 
Johnson, L.P. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
A.  The Reporting Entity (Continued) 
The Authority both directly and indirectly controls the operations of FHC, and the Authority’s Board also acts as the governing 
body for the organization.  Therefore, FHC is presented as a blended component unit included in the balances of the primary 
government, thus all significant inter-program balances and transactions between FHC and the Authority have been eliminated. 
No separate financial statements are issued for FHC.  However, condensed financial statements have been included in Note 10- 
Blended Component Unit in accordance with GASB Statement No. 61. 
 
Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. 
Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. (Senior Residence at Reddick) is a 9% tax credit Rental Assistance Demonstration 
(RAD) limited partnership project organized for the purpose of engaging in the business of affordable housing, and in such other 
related business as agreed upon by the partners.  The partnership operates a 49-unit facility, of which 40 units receive Project 
Based Voucher assistance from HUD.  
 
The relationship between the Authority and Senior Residence at Reddick is supportive in nature as Senior Residence at Reddick 
often carries out its stated purpose of providing decent, safe and affordable housing by supporting the operational goals and 
objectives of the Authority.  However, the Authority is not financially accountable for Senior Residence at Reddick and does not 
have the ability influence control or impose its will over Senior Residence at Reddick as the Authority does not own a majority 
ownership interest in Senior Residence at Reddick.  Therefore, Senior Residence at Reddick is discretely presented in the current 
year financial statements as its own “component unit” column with separate “component unit” disclosures in the notes to the 
financial statements. All inter-program balances and transactions between the primary government and the discretely presented 
component unit will be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements (see Note 11 – Transactions with Discretely Presented 
Component Units). Separately issued financial statements of Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P. may be obtained by 
contacting Robert Eddy, Chief Financial Officer, Franklin Housing Authority, 200 Spring Street, Franklin, TN 37065. 
 
Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. 
Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. (Reddick Street) is a 9% tax credit Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) limited partnership 
project organized for the purpose of engaging in the business of affordable housing, and in such other related business as agreed 
upon by the partners.  The partnership operates a 22-unit project, all of which receive Project Based Voucher assistance from 
HUD. 
 
The relationship between the Authority and Reddick Street is supportive in nature as Reddick Street often carries out its stated 
purpose of providing decent, safe and affordable housing by supporting the operational goals and objectives of the Authority.  
However, the Authority is not financially accountable for Reddick Street and does not have the ability influence control or 
impose its will over Reddick Street as the Authority does not own a majority ownership interest in Reddick Street.  Therefore, 
Reddick Street is discretely presented in the current year financial statements as its own “component unit” column with separate 
“component unit” disclosures in the notes to the financial statements. All inter-program balances and transactions between the 
primary government and the discretely presented component unit will be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements (see 
Note 11 – Transactions with Discretely Presented Component Units). Separately issued financial statements of Reddick Street 
Associates I, L.P. may be obtained by contacting Robert Eddy, Chief Financial Officer, Franklin Housing Authority, 200 Spring 
Street, Franklin, TN 37065. 
 
B.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The Authority’s financial statements are accounted for on the flow of economic resources management focus using the accrual 
basis of accounting.  The accounting objectives are a determination of net income, financial position, and changes in cash flow.   
 
All assets and liabilities associated with a proprietary fund’s activities are included on the Statement of Net Position.  Proprietary 
fund net position is segregated into Net Investment in Capital Assets, Restricted Net Position, and Unrestricted Net Position.  
Revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Proprietary funds distinguish 
operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the 
proprietary funds are rental charges to tenants and operating subsidy grants from HUD.  Operating expenses for proprietary funds 
include the cost of administrative expenses, maintenance expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  The Authority applies restricted resources to 
fund restricted costs and unrestricted resources to fund unrestricted costs.  All material inter-program accounts and transactions 
are eliminated in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
B.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 
The Authority has previously adopted GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Transactions.  In accordance with this statement, the Authority accounted for all grants that qualify as non-exchange transactions, 
recognizing receivables and revenues when all applicable eligibility requirements are met.  In addition, capital contributions are 
recorded on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position after income before contributions and before 
changes in net position. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments requires that resources be classified for accounting and 
reporting purposes into the following three net position categories: 
 

• Net investment in capital assets – Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of 
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

• The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources related to those assets. 

• The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the 
restricted component on net position. 

 
C. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and money market accounts.  For purposes of the statement of 
cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid investments available for current use with an initial maturity of three months 
or less to be cash equivalents.  The carrying amounts reported on the balance sheet approximate fair values because of the short 
maturities of those investments. 
 
D. Accounts Receivables 
All receivables are current and due within one year.  Receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.  
Allowances are reported when accounts are proven to be uncollectible.  The allowance method is used to determine allowances 
for uncollectible accounts. Allowances are based upon historical trends and periodic aging of accounts receivable. 
 
E. Notes, Loans & Mortgages Receivables 
Notes receivable relate to affordable housing construction activities where the Authority has loaned funds to its discretely 
presented component units to be used in the development of tax credit RAD affordable housing projects. The notes receivable are 
collectable as defined in the various loan agreements. Any portions of the notes receivable that are deemed due and collectable 
within the next twelve months are reported as current assets. The remaining notes receivables that are deemed collectable beyond 
the next twelve months are reported as non-current assets. All of the notes receivables are considered non-current assets as of 
December 31, 2016 as none of the notes receivable are currently due within the next twelve months.  No allowance account has 
been set up as the Authority has determined that the notes are fully collectable as of December 31, 2016. 
 
F. Restricted Assets and Liabilities 
Debt covenants, HUD regulations, and inter-local agreements restrict the use of certain assets. Restricted assets are offset by 
related liabilities in accordance with their liquidity.  
 
G. Inventories 
Inventories are accounted for using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and recorded at the lower of cost or market, net of 
allowance.  Materials and supplies are recorded as inventories when purchased and as expenditures when used.  Allowances are 
reported when materials and supplies are deemed obsolete. 
 
H. Prepaid Items 
Prepaid items consist of payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future periods. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
I. Capital Assets 
Capital assets include property, furniture, equipment, and machinery.  Capital assets with initial, individual costs that equal or 
exceed $1,000 and estimated useful lives of over one year are recorded as capital assets.  Capital assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 
the date of donation.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.  
Construction in progress consists of capital improvements funded by modernization grant programs.  Capital assets are 
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Assets Years 
Buildings & Improvements 20-27.5 
Furniture, equipment, and machinery 3-10 

 
J. Compensated Absences 
The Authority’s policy allows each employee to accumulate up to 240 vacation hours and be paid for them upon separation.  
Employees can accrue unlimited sick leave hours, but cannot be paid for any accumulated hours upon separation.  The majority 
of employees utilize their annual accrual of vacation and sick leave during the year accrued.  The Authority records compensated 
absences in the period they are earned and use a systematic allocation process to allocate between short-term and long-term 
liability classification. 
 
K. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report separate sections for deferred 
outflows/inflows of resources. These separate financial statement elements represent a consumption or acquisition of net position 
that apply to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) or an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until then. The Authority has no items that meet this criteria. 
 
L. Unearned Revenue 
The Authority recognizes revenues as earned. An amount received in advance of the period in which it is earned is recorded as a 
liability under unearned revenue. 
 
M. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
N. Income Taxes 
The Authority is not subject to federal or state income taxes. 
 
O. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures.  This statement requires state and local 
governments, for the first time, to disclose information about tax abatement agreements.  It also requires governments to disclose 
information about their own tax abatements separately from information about tax abatements that are entered into by other 
governments and reduce the reporting government’s tax revenues.  The adoption of GASB Statement No. 77 had no material 
effect on the Authority’s December 31, 2016 financial statements. 
 
The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans. This statement amends the scope and applicability of GASB 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of 
state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that: (1) is not a 
state or local governmental pension plan; (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or local 
governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local governmental employers; and (3) has no 
predominant state or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state or local governmental 
employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). This statement also establishes requirements for recognition and 
measurement of pension expense, expenditures, and liabilities; note disclosures; and required supplementary information for 
pensions that have the characteristics described above.  The adoption of GASB Statement No. 78 had no material effect on the 
Authority’s December 31, 2016 financial statements. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 2 – CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments may be invested in the following HUD and Tennessee State approved vehicles: 
 

• Direct obligations of the federal government backed by the full faith and credit of the United States; 
• Obligations of government agencies; 
• Securities of government sponsored agencies; 
• Demand and savings deposits; and, 
• Time deposits and repurchase agreements. 

 
At December 31, 2016, cash was in bank deposits or money market accounts, and investments were in certificates of deposit, all 
of which were insured or collateralized with securities held by the Authority or by its agent in the Authority’s name.  The 
investments were in certificates of deposit. Cash and investments balances at December 31, 2016, totaled $621,611 and 
$647,871, respectively.  
 
Interest Rate Risk – The Authority’s formal investment policy does not specifically address the exposure to this risk. 
 
Credit Risk – The Authority’s formal investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.  Credit risk is generally 
evaluated based on the credit ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk – The Authority’s policy is to limit credit risk by adherence to the list of HUD permitted investments, 
which are backed by the full faith and credit of or a guarantee of principal and interest by the U.S. Government. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk – The Authority’s investment policy does not restrict the amount that the Authority may invest in 
any one issuer. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk as it applies to Tennessee State Law – The Authority’s policies limit deposits and investments to those 
instruments allowed by applicable state laws. State statutes require that all deposits with financial institutions must be 
collateralized by securities whose market value is equal to 105% of the value of uninsured deposits. The deposits must be insured 
by federal depository insurance or the Tennessee Bank Collateral Pool, or collateralized by collateral held by the Authority’s 
agent in the Authority’s name, or by the Federal Reserve Banks acting as third party agents. State statutes also authorize the 
Authority to invest in bonds, notes or treasury bills of the United States or any of its agencies, certificates of deposit at Tennessee 
state chartered banks and savings and loan associations and federally chartered banks and savings and loan associations, 
repurchase agreements utilizing obligations of the United States or its agencies as the underlying securities and the state pooled 
investment fund. Statutes also require that securities underlying repurchase agreements must have a market value of at least equal 
to the amount of funds invested in the repurchase transaction. As of December 31, 2016, all deposits and investments were fully 
collateralized or insured. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A. Changes in Capital Assets 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016, was as follows:  
 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications

Ending 
Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 569,084$     -$              -$             -$                    569,084$      
Construction in progress 232,364       257,719      -               (178,073)           312,010        

Total capital assets not being depreciated 801,448       257,719      -               (178,073)           881,094        

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings and improvements 12,525,239   163,474      -               161,787            12,850,500   
Equipment 528,453       26,271        -               16,286              571,010        

Total capital assets being depreciated 13,053,692   189,745      -               178,073            13,421,510   

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (8,153,156)   (374,955)     -               -                      (8,528,111)    
Equipment (431,861)      (38,690)      -               -                      (470,551)      

Total accumulated depreciation (8,585,017)   (413,645)     -               -                      (8,998,662)    

Capital assets, net 5,270,123$   33,819$      -$             -$                    5,303,942$   

 
B. Capital Contributions 
The Authority receives capital grants from HUD.  The Authority recognized $182,136 in capital contributions for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2016.  
 
C. Commitments 
At December 31, 2016, the Authority had one uncompleted construction contract with SDT Contractors, Inc. in the amount of 
$35,602.  This construction commitment was for the concrete parking and sidewalk replacement project.  
 
NOTE 4 – LOAN LIABILITIES 
 
On August 30, 2012, the Authority entered into an agreement (Grant Note) with the Tennessee Housing Development Agency 
(THDA) for a $1,000,000 grant from the Housing Trust Fund. The agreement terms describe in the Grant Note state that the loan 
bears a zero percent interest rate per annum. Additionally, a 20 percent reduction of the original principal sum due will occur 
annually, as long as the conditions in the Grant Note are met. As of December 31, 2016 there was $200,000 outstanding on the 
note. The Authority expects for all $200,000 of the remaining outstanding note payable to be forgiven and reduced within the 
next fiscal year. 
 
On August 5, 2015, the Authority entered into an agreement (Grant Note) with the Tennessee Housing Development Agency 
(THDA) for a $500,000 grant from the Housing Trust Fund. The agreement terms describe in the Grant Note state that the loan 
bears a zero percent interest rate per annum. Additionally, a 20 percent reduction of the original principal sum due will occur 
annually, as long as the conditions in the Grant Note are met. As of December 31, 2016 there was $350,000 outstanding on the 
note. The Authority expects for $100,000 of the outstanding note payable to be forgiven and reduced within the next fiscal year. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 5 – NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Noncurrent liabilities at December 31, 2016 consisted of the following: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

FSS escrowed liabilities  $           24,393  $           45,434  $           12,339  $           57,488  $          25,028 
Accrued compensated absences               44,170                 8,463                       -               52,633              15,791 
Loan liabilities             400,000             450,000             300,000             550,000            300,000 

Total noncurrent liabilities  $         468,563  $          503,897  $         312,339  $          660,121  $         340,819 

 
NOTE 6 – PENSION PLAN (DEFINED CONTRIBUTION) 
 
The Authority provides pension benefits for its eligible full-time employees through the Housing Renewal & Local Agency 
Retirement Plan (HRLARP), a defined contribution plan administered by Housing Agency Retirement Trust (HART). The plan 
was adopted by the Board of Commissioners and only the Board has the authority to approve any amendments to the plan. In a 
defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.  All employees are 
eligible for the plan on the first of the month following the employee’s one-year employment anniversary date. Employees 
contribute 1.5% and the Authority contributes 13% of the employees’ base salary each month. The Authority’s contributions for 
each employee (and interest allocated to the employee’s account) are vested 20% annually for each year of participation. An 
employee is fully vested after five years of participation or immediately in the event of an employee’s death or disability prior to 
retirement. Contributions to the Plan for the year ended December 31, 2016 were $83,189 and $12,717 by the Authority and the 
employees, respectively.  
 
NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The Authority has mitigated this risk by obtaining insurance coverage 
from commercial insurance companies.  Premiums paid for insurance coverage are recorded as expenses of the funds affected.  
The various insurance policies are subject to deductible amounts and maximum coverages.  If the deductibles and maximums are 
exceeded, this could cause the Authority to suffer losses if a loss is incurred from any such incidents.  The ultimate outcome of 
uninsured losses cannot presently be determined, and no provision for any liability that may result, if any, has been made in the 
financial statements. During the current year and the prior three years, settled claims have not exceeded coverage levels, and 
insurance coverage, by major categories of risk, is consistent with prior year. 
 
NOTE 8 – CONCENTRATION OF RISK 
 
The Authority receives most of its funding from HUD.  These funds and grants are subject to modification by HUD depending on 
availability of funding. 
 
NOTE 9 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Grants 
Amounts received or receivable from HUD are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies.  If expenses are disallowed 
as a result of these audits, the claims for reimbursement to the grantor agency would become a liability of the Authority.  In the 
opinion of management, any such adjustments would not be significant. 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 10 – BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT 
 
Condensed combining information for the Authority’s blended component unit, Franklin Housing Collaborative, for the year 
ended December 31, 2016 is presented as follows: 
 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
December 31, 2016 
 

ASSETS
Current assets 517,573$            
Noncurrent assets 252,283              

Total assets 769,856              

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 16,222                

Total liabilities 16,222                

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 152,283              
Restricted 21,943                
Unrestricted 579,408              

Total net position 753,634$            

 
 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
For Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 

OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Operating revenues 606,862$              
Operating expenses (314,513)               

Operating income (loss) 292,349                

Change in net position 292,349                

Total net position - beginning of the year 461,285                

Total net position - end of the year 753,634$              
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 10 – BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT (Continued) 
 
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
For Year Ended December 31, 2016 
 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY:
Operating activities (43,260)$                    
Capital and related financing activities (94,375)                      

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents (137,635)                    

Cash balances - beginning of the year 441,274                     

Cash balances - end of the year 303,639$                   
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 11 – TRANSACTIONS WITH DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
 
Notes Receivable. The Authority’s notes receivable consist solely of amounts loaned to and due from the discretely presented 
component units. As of December 31, 2016, notes receivable, which include accrued interest receivable, were composed of the 
following: 
 

The Authority loaned $1,000,000 to Senior Residence at Reddick Street, LP as evidenced by a Promissory Note
issued to the Authority dated August 30, 2012. The loan is comprised of Housing Trust Fund (HTF) Competitive
Grant Program funds originally borrowed by the Authority from the Tennessee Housing Development Agency
(THDA) and then in turn loaned by the Authority to Senior Residence at Reddick Street, LP for the development
of the Senior Residence Project, all of which is agreed to in detail in the Subordination Agreement, the HTF
Working Agreement, and the Promissory Note. The Note has an interest rate of 5.00% per annum, compounded
annually, with a maturity of 40 years from the date of the promissory note. Payment of principal and accrued
interest are payable to the Authority from Senior Residence at Reddick Street, LP's surplus cash in the priority of
distributions of net cash flows as outlined in the Partnership Agreement. The Authority does not expect to receive
any repayment on the Notes Receivables within the next fiscal year.  1,204,621$    

The Authority loaned $500,000 to Senior Residence at Reddick Street, LP as evidenced by a Promissory Note
issued to the Authority dated August 30, 2012. The loan is comprised of HUD Operating Fund Financing Program
funds originally borrowed by the Authority from Suntrust Bank and then in turn loaned by the Authority to Senior
Residence at Reddick Street, LP for the development of the Senior Residence Project, all of which is agreed to in
detail in the Authority Public Housing Loan Agreement and the Promissory Note. The Note has an interest rate of
5.00% per annum until the date or repayment in full of this Note, with a maturity of 40 years from the date of the
promissory note. Payment of principal and accrued interest are payable to the Authority from Senior Residence at
Reddick Street, LP's surplus cash in the priority of distributions of net cash flows as outlined in the Partnership
Agreement. The Authority does not expect to receive any repayment on the Notes Receivables within the next
fiscal year. 322,697        

The Authority loaned $562,000 to Reddick Street Associates I, LP as evidenced by 2 Promissory Notes issued to
the Authority dated August 5, 2015. Note A is a promissory note in the amount of $512,000 comprised of Capital
Funds that have been defederalized pursuant to the RAD Requirements. Note B is a promissory note in the amount 
of $50,000 comprised of CDBG Funds made available through a CDBG Contract for use in accordance with the
CDBG Contract. Both Notes have an interest rate of 1.00% per annum, with a maturity of 40 years from the date
of the promissory notes. Payment of principal and accrued interest are payable to the Authority from Reddick
Street Associates I, LP's surplus cash in the priority of distributions of net cash flows as outlined in the Partnership
Agreement. The Authority does not expect to receive any repayment on the Notes Receivables within the next
fiscal year. 510,017        

The Authority loaned $500,000 to Reddick Street Associates I, LP as evidenced by a Promissory Note issued to
the Authority dated August 5, 2015. The loan is comprised of Housing Trust Fund (HTF) Competitive Grant
Program funds originally borrowed by the Authority from the Tennessee Housing Development Agency (THDA)
and then in turn loaned by the Authority to Reddick Street Associates I, LP for the development of the Reddick
Street Project, all of which is agreed to in detail in the Subordination Agreement, the HTF Working Agreement,
and the Promissory Note. The Note has an interest rate of 5.00% per annum, compounded annually, with a
maturity of 40 years from the date of the promissory note. Payment of principal and accrued interest are payable
to the Authority from Reddick Street Associates I, LP's surplus cash in the priority of distributions of net cash
flows as outlined in the Partnership Agreement. The Authority does not expect to receive any repayment on the
Notes Receivables within the next fiscal year. 456,081        

              Total noncurrent notes receivable (principal and interest) 2,493,416$    
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 11 – TRANSACTIONS WITH DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
 
Ground Lease.  
The Authority and Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P entered into a ground lease for land which the apartment complex is 
located. The cost of the ground lease is $1 per year, paid in advance. The lease commenced on August 30, 2012 and expires 
August 30, 2111.  
 
The Authority and Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. entered into a 99 year ground lease for land which the apartment complex is 
located. The cost of the ground lease is $1 per year, paid in advance. The lease commenced on August 5, 2015 and expires 
August 30, 2114  
 
NOTE 12 – INTER-PROGRAM BALANCES 
 
Inter-program balances at December 31, 2016 consisted of the following: 
 

Interprogram Due 
From Interprogram Due To

Low Rent Public Housing Program 9,508$                      -$                             

FSS Program Coordinator -                              (9,508)                       

     Total 9,508$                      (9,508)$                     

 
These inter-program balances exist because in the normal course of operations, certain programs may pay for common costs or 
advance funds to meet the operational needs of other programs which create inter-program receivables or payables.  These 
balances are expected to be repaid within one year from the balance sheet date.  In addition, these inter-program balances have 
been eliminated in the preparation of the basic financial statements. 
 
NOTE 13 – RESTRICTED NET POSITION 
 
Restricted net position consist of excess Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) funds available to the Authority under the Section 8 
Housing Choice Vouchers program, funds available under the Low Rent Public Housing Program that represent unused 
Operating Fund reserves released by HUD to the Authority and restricted for future financing of constructing affordable housing 
units, and restricted scholarship funds that are available under Franklin Housing Collaborative, the Authority’s blended 
component unit.  Total restricted net position related to excess HAP was $59,605 as of the end of the fiscal year. Total restricted 
net position related to program income funds restricted for future financing of constructing affordable housing units was $93,960 
as of the end of the fiscal year. Lastly, restricted net position related to the donated funds restricted for future scholarships was 
$21,943. 
 
NOTE 14 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Events that occur after the balance sheet date, but before the financial statements were available to be issued must be evaluated 
for recognition or disclosure.  The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about the conditions that existed at the 
balance sheet date are recognized in the accompanying financial statements.  Subsequent events which provide evidence about 
conditions that existed after the balance sheet date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.  Management evaluated the 
activity of the Authority through June 29, 2017, (the date the financial statements were available to be issued) and concluded that 
no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the 
financial statements.  
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

 
NOTE 15 – FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 
 
The Authority prepares its financial data schedule in accordance with HUD requirements in a prescribed format. The schedule’s 
format excludes depreciation expense from operating activities, and includes investment revenue and capital grant revenue in 
operating activities, and reflects tenant revenue and bad debt expense separately, which differs from the presentation of the basic 
financial statements. Additionally, the schedule shows two prior period adjustments for the discretely presented component unit; 
however, one of these related to Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. in the amount of $1,777,637, is shown on the face of the 
financial statements as beginning equity for the newly included Reddick Street Associates I, L.P. financial statements. The other 
prior period adjustment amounting to ($1,847,659) relates to a correction of errors to Senior Residence at Reddick Street, L.P.’s 
beginning capital assets, net of depreciation balance. These events had no effect on current year income.   
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE – BALANCE SHEET 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers

6.1 Component 
Unit - Discretely 

Presented

6.2 Component 
Unit - Blended

14.896 PIH 
Family Self-
Sufficiency 
Program

Subtotal ELIM Total

 111  Cash - Unrestricted $30,897 $57,059 $30,537 $277,024 $395,517 $395,517 

 112  Cash - Restricted - Modernization and Development

 113  Cash - Other Restricted $126,420 $59,605 $1,593,320 $26,515 $1,805,860 $1,805,860 

 114  Cash - Tenant Security Deposits $23,535 $22,404 $100 $46,039 $46,039 

 115  Cash - Restricted for Payment of Current Liabilities $20,456 $20,456 $20,456 

 100  Total Cash $201,308 $0 $116,664 $1,646,261 $303,639 $0 $2,267,872 $0 $2,267,872 

 

 121  Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects

 122  Accounts Receivable - HUD Other Projects $27,510 $0 $9,508 $37,018 $37,018 

 124  Accounts Receivable - Other Government

 125  Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous $3,259 $47,100 $212,177 $262,536 $262,536 

 126  Accounts Receivable - Tenants $48,445 $6,676 $1,758 $56,879 $56,879 

 126.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants ($4,845) $0 ($1) ($4,846) ($4,846)

 126.2  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 127  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Current

 128  Fraud Recovery $9,886 $9,886 $9,886 

 128.1  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud ($9,886) ($9,886) ($9,886)

 129  Accrued Interest Receivable $8,329 $8,329 $8,329 

 120  Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts $82,698 $0 $0 $53,776 $213,934 $9,508 $359,916 $0 $359,916 

 

 131  Investments - Unrestricted $647,871 $647,871 $647,871 

 132  Investments - Restricted

 135  Investments - Restricted for Payment of Current Liability

 142  Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets $12,367 $6,756 $19,123 $19,123 

 143  Inventories $45,629 $0 $45,629 $45,629 

 143.1  Allowance for Obsolete Inventories ($4,563) $0 ($4,563) ($4,563)

 144  Inter Program Due From $9,508 $9,508 ($9,508) $0 

 145  Assets Held for Sale

 150  Total Current Assets $994,818 $0 $116,664 $1,706,793 $517,573 $9,508 $3,345,356 ($9,508) $3,335,848 

 

 161  Land $543,475 $50,000 $25,609 $619,084 $619,084 

 162  Buildings $12,550,451 $20,317,057 $300,049 $33,167,557 $33,167,557 

 163  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Dwellings

 164  Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration $480,131 $90,879 $571,010 $571,010 

 165  Leasehold Improvements

 166  Accumulated Depreciation ($8,664,428) ($1,248,212) ($334,234) ($10,246,874) ($10,246,874)

 167  Construction in Progress $242,030 $69,980 $312,010 $312,010 

 168  Infrastructure

 160  Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $5,151,659 $0 $0 $19,118,845 $152,283 $0 $24,422,787 $0 $24,422,787 

 

 171  Notes, Loans and Mortgages Receivable - Non-Current $2,493,416 $2,493,416 $2,493,416 

 172  Notes, Loans, & Mortgages Receivable - Non Current - Past Due

 173  Grants Receivable - Non Current

 174  Other Assets $133,946 $100,000 $233,946 $233,946 

 176  Investments in Joint Ventures

 180  Total Non-Current Assets $7,645,075 $0 $0 $19,252,791 $252,283 $0 $27,150,149 $0 $27,150,149 

 

 200  Deferred Outflow of Resources
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE – BALANCE SHEET 

 DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers

6.1 Component 
Unit - Discretely 

Presented

6.2 Component 
Unit - Blended

14.896 PIH 
Family Self-
Sufficiency 
Program

Subtotal ELIM Total

 290  Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $8,639,893 $0 $116,664 $20,959,584 $769,856 $9,508 $30,495,505 ($9,508) $30,485,997 

 

 311  Bank Overdraft

 312  Accounts Payable <= 90 Days $32,151 $1,390,182 $5,774 $1,428,107 $1,428,107 

 313  Accounts Payable >90 Days Past Due

 321  Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable $2,012 $885 $2,897 $2,897 

 322  Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion $15,791 $15,791 $15,791 

 324  Accrued Contingency Liability

 325  Accrued Interest Payable $296,299 $296,299 $296,299 

 331  Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs

 332  Account Payable - PHA Projects

 333  Accounts Payable - Other Government $30,840 $41,272 $72,112 $72,112 

 341  Tenant Security Deposits $23,535 $22,404 $100 $46,039 $46,039 

 342  Unearned Revenue $3,532 $27,805 $3,795 $35,132 $35,132 

 343  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue $0 $8,418,244 $8,418,244 $8,418,244 

 344  Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Operating Borrowings

 345  Other Current Liabilities $20,456 $1,385,432 $4,572 $1,410,460 $1,410,460 

 346  Accrued Liabilities - Other $47,579 $4,856 $4,891 $57,326 $57,326 

 347  Inter Program - Due To $9,508 $9,508 ($9,508) $0 

 348  Loan Liability - Current $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 

 310  Total Current Liabilities $475,896 $0 $27,805 $11,562,484 $16,222 $9,508 $12,091,915 ($9,508) $12,082,407 

 

 351  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue $0 $2,205,800 $2,205,800 $2,205,800 

 352  Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Operating Borrowings

 353  Non-current Liabilities - Other $32,460 $410,305 $442,765 $442,765 

 354  Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current $36,842 $36,842 $36,842 

 355  Loan Liability - Non Current $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 

 356  FASB 5 Liabilities

 357  Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities

 350  Total Non-Current Liabilities $319,302 $0 $0 $2,616,105 $0 $0 $2,935,407 $0 $2,935,407 

 

 300  Total Liabilities $795,198 $0 $27,805 $14,178,589 $16,222 $9,508 $15,027,322 ($9,508) $15,017,814 

 

 400  Deferred Inflow of Resources

 

 508.4  Net Investment in Capital Assets $5,151,659 $0 $0 $8,494,801 $152,283 $13,798,743 $13,798,743 

 511.4  Restricted Net Position $93,960 $0 $59,605 $1,593,320 $21,943 $1,768,828 $1,768,828 

 512.4  Unrestricted Net Position $2,599,076 $0 $29,254 ($3,307,126) $579,408 $0 ($99,388) ($99,388)

 513  Total Equity - Net Assets / Position $7,844,695 $0 $88,859 $6,780,995 $753,634 $0 $15,468,183 $0 $15,468,183 

 

 600  Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Equity - Net $8,639,893 $0 $116,664 $20,959,584 $769,856 $9,508 $30,495,505 ($9,508) $30,485,997 

 

 27 
 



FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE – INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers

6.1 Component 
Unit - Discretely 

Presented

6.2 Component 
Unit - Blended

14.896 PIH 
Family Self-
Sufficiency 
Program

Subtotal ELIM Total

 70300  Net Tenant Rental Revenue $749,190 $196,442 $143,438 $1,089,070 $1,089,070 

 70400  Tenant Revenue - Other $59,706 $59,706 $59,706 

 70500  Total Tenant Revenue $808,896 $0 $0 $196,442 $143,438 $0 $1,148,776 $0 $1,148,776 

 

 70600  HUD PHA Operating Grants $1,445,678 $29,043 $405,973 $59,355 $1,940,049 $1,940,049 

 70610  Capital Grants $182,136 $182,136 $182,136 

 70710  Management Fee

 70720  Asset Management Fee

 70730  Book Keeping Fee

 70740  Front Line Service Fee

 70750  Other Fees

 70700  Total Fee Revenue $0 $0 $0 

 

 70800  Other Government Grants $350,000 $105,979 $455,979 $455,979 

 71100  Investment Income - Unrestricted $8,103 $564 $0 $8,667 $8,667 

 71200  Mortgage Interest Income $84,222 $84,222 $84,222 

 71300  Proceeds from Disposition of Assets Held for Sale

 71310  Cost of Sale of Assets

 71400  Fraud Recovery $2,692 $50 $2,742 $2,742 

 71500  Other Revenue $221,299 $3,111 $463,374 $687,784 ($165,813) $521,971 

 71600  Gain or Loss on Sale of Capital Assets

 72000  Investment Income - Restricted

 70000  Total Revenue $3,100,334 $29,043 $408,665 $306,096 $606,862 $59,355 $4,510,355 ($165,813) $4,344,542 

 

 91100  Administrative Salaries $511,810 $22,060 $50,677 $113,635 $698,182 $698,182 

 91200  Auditing Fees $10,925 $7,500 $950 $19,375 $19,375 

 91300  Management Fee $8,462 $8,462 $8,462 

 91310  Book-keeping Fee

 91400  Advertising and Marketing $1,749 $1,749 $1,749 

 91500  Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative $184,553 $9,050 $9,832 $31,806 $235,241 $235,241 

 91600  Office Expenses $109,199 $21,342 $25,791 $156,332 ($13,200) $143,132 

 91700  Legal Expense $14,412 $495 $14,907 $14,907 

 91800  Travel $36,117 $1,490 $448 $38,055 $38,055 

 91810  Allocated Overhead

 91900  Other $13,200 $67,969 $173 $81,342 $81,342 

 91000  Total Operating - Administrative $880,216 $0 $31,110 $169,021 $173,298 $0 $1,253,645 ($13,200) $1,240,445 

 

 92000  Asset Management Fee

 92100  Tenant Services - Salaries $23,234 $47,484 $70,718 $70,718 

 92200  Relocation Costs

 92300  Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services $5,809 $11,871 $17,680 $17,680 

 92400  Tenant Services - Other $3,754 $701 $21,185 $25,640 $25,640 

 92500  Total Tenant Services $3,754 $29,043 $0 $701 $21,185 $59,355 $114,038 $0 $114,038 

 

 93100  Water $69,149 $7,261 $5,469 $81,879 $81,879 

 93200  Electricity $286,275 $36,492 $28,753 $351,520 $351,520 

 93300  Gas $50,623 $13,191 $63,814 $63,814 

 93400  Fuel
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE – INCOME STATEMENT 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 

Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
Services

14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers

6.1 Component 
Unit - Discretely 

Presented

6.2 Component 
Unit - Blended

14.896 PIH 
Family Self-
Sufficiency 
Program

Subtotal ELIM Total

 93500  Labor

 93600  Sewer $93,423 $3,773 $7,696 $104,892 $104,892 

 93700  Employee Benefit Contributions - Utilities

 93800  Other Utilities Expense

 93000  Total Utilities $499,470 $0 $0 $60,717 $41,918 $0 $602,105 $0 $602,105 

 

 94100  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor $95,976 $26,174 $122,150 $122,150 

 94200  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other $84,923 $159 $1,091 $86,173 $86,173 

 94300  Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts $260,176 $2,915 $56,722 $28,442 $348,255 $348,255 

 94500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance $39,027 $39,027 $39,027 

 94000  Total Maintenance $480,102 $0 $2,915 $56,881 $55,707 $0 $595,605 $0 $595,605 

 

 95100  Protective Services - Labor

 95200  Protective Services - Other Contract Costs

 95300  Protective Services - Other

 95500  Employee Benefit Contributions - Protective Services

 95000  Total Protective Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

 96110  Property Insurance $21,015 $35,334 $56,349 $56,349 

 96120  Liability Insurance $8,389 $8,389 $8,389 

 96130  Workmen's Compensation $12,371 $656 $13,027 $13,027 

 96140  All Other Insurance $9,795 $9,795 $9,795 

 96100  Total insurance Premiums $51,570 $0 $0 $35,990 $0 $0 $87,560 $0 $87,560 

 

 96200  Other General Expenses $151,392 $212,939 $6,673 $371,004 ($60,851) $310,153 

 96210  Compensated Absences $8,466 $8,466 $8,466 

 96300  Payments in Lieu of Taxes $23,226 $11,446 $34,672 $34,672 

 96400  Bad debt - Tenant Rents $26,823 $728 $27,551 $27,551 

 96500  Bad debt - Mortgages

 96600  Bad debt - Other

 96800  Severance Expense

 96000  Total Other General Expenses $209,907 $0 $0 $225,113 $6,673 $0 $441,693 ($60,851) $380,842 

 

 96710  Interest of Mortgage (or Bonds) Payable $71,542 $71,542 $71,542 

 96720  Interest on Notes Payable (Short and Long Term)

 96730  Amortization of Bond Issue Costs

 96700  Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost $0 $0 $0 $71,542 $0 $0 $71,542 $0 $71,542 

 

 96900  Total Operating Expenses $2,125,019 $29,043 $34,025 $619,965 $298,781 $59,355 $3,166,188 ($74,051) $3,092,137 

 

 97000  Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses $975,315 $0 $374,640 ($313,869) $308,081 $0 $1,344,167 ($91,762) $1,252,405 

 

 97100  Extraordinary Maintenance

 97200  Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized

 97300  Housing Assistance Payments $304,152 $304,152 ($91,762) $212,390 

 97350  HAP Portability-In

 97400  Depreciation Expense $397,913 $398,409 $15,732 $812,054 $812,054 

 97500  Fraud Losses
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Project Total

14.870 Resident 
Opportunity and 

Supportive 
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14.871 Housing 
Choice Vouchers
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Presented
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Unit - Blended

14.896 PIH 
Family Self-
Sufficiency 
Program

Subtotal ELIM Total

 97600  Capital Outlays  - Governmental Funds

 97700  Debt Principal Payment - Governmental Funds

 97800  Dwelling Units Rent Expense

 90000  Total Expenses $2,522,932 $29,043 $338,177 $1,018,374 $314,513 $59,355 $4,282,394 ($165,813) $4,116,581 

 

 10010  Operating Transfer In $457,599 $457,599 ($457,599) $0 

 10020  Operating transfer Out ($457,599) ($457,599) $457,599 $0 

 10030  Operating Transfers from/to Primary Government

 10040  Operating Transfers from/to Component Unit

 10050  Proceeds from Notes, Loans and Bonds

 10060  Proceeds from Property Sales

 10070  Extraordinary Items, Net Gain/Loss

 10080  Special Items (Net Gain/Loss)

 10091  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer In

 10092  Inter Project Excess Cash Transfer Out

 10093  Transfers between Program and Project - In

 10094  Transfers between Project and Program - Out

 10100  Total Other financing Sources (Uses) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 

 10000  Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses $577,402 $0 $70,488 ($712,278) $292,349 $0 $227,961 $0 $227,961 

 

 11020  Required Annual Debt Principal Payments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 11030  Beginning Equity $7,267,293 $0 $18,371 $7,563,295 $461,285 $0 $15,310,244 $15,310,244 

 11040  Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors $0 ($70,022) ($70,022) ($70,022)

 11050  Changes in Compensated Absence Balance

 11060  Changes in Contingent Liability Balance

 11070  Changes in Unrecognized Pension Transition Liability

 11080  Changes in Special Term/Severance Benefits Liability

 11090  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Dwelling Rents

 11100  Changes in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Other

 11170  Administrative Fee Equity $29,254 $29,254 $29,254 

 

 11180  Housing Assistance Payments Equity $59,605 $59,605 $59,605 

 11190  Unit Months Available 2712 0 756 0 0 3468 3468

 11210  Number of Unit Months Leased 2704 0 661 0 0 3365 3365

 11270  Excess Cash $163,594 $163,594 $163,594 

 11610  Land Purchases $0 $0 $0 

 11620  Building Purchases $351,213 $351,213 $351,213 

 11630  Furniture & Equipment - Dwelling Purchases $0 $0 $0 

 11640  Furniture & Equipment - Administrative Purchases $1,876 $1,876 $1,876 

 11650  Leasehold Improvements Purchases $0 $0 $0 

 11660  Infrastructure Purchases $0 $0 $0 

 13510  CFFP Debt Service Payments $0 $0 $0 

 13901  Replacement Housing Factor Funds $0 $0 $0 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 

Federal Grantor
CFDA 

Number Contract Number Expenditures

Federal Awards

US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):

Low Rent Public Housing 14.850 TN035-00000116D 968,767$              

Total Low Rent Public Housing Program 968,767              

Resident Opportunity and Self Sufficiency 14.870 TN035RPS055A012 29,043                 

Total Resident Opportunity and Self Sufficiency 29,043                

Housing Choice Voucher Program 14.871 405,973                

Total Housing Choice Voucher Program 405,973              

Capital Fund Program 14.872 TN043P035501-13 138,799                

Capital Fund Program 14.872 TN043P035501-14 131,227                

Capital Fund Program 14.872 TN043P035501-15 206,858                

Capital Fund Program 14.872 TN043P035501-16 182,163                

Total Capital Fund Program  659,047              

FSS Program Coordinator 14.896 TN035FSH377A015 59,355                 

Total Resident Opportunity and Self Sufficiency 59,355                

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDED 2,122,185$         

 
 
 
Note 1 – Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of the 
Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2016. The information in this Schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents 
only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes 
in net position, or cash flows of the Authority.  
 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized 
following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are 
limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal 
course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. The Authority has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis 
indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of  
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
To the Board of Commissioners 
Franklin Housing Authority 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States, the basic financial statements of the Franklin Housing Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 
31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2017.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A 
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
 
Birmingham, AL 
June 29, 2017 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance 

with the Uniform Guidance 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Commissioners 
Franklin Housing Authority 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Franklin Housing Authority’s (the “Authority”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. The Authority’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its 
federal programs.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal programs based on our audit 
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for  
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances.   
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.  
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the 
Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each 
major federal program as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over 
compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
 
 

 33 
 



 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
 
Birmingham, AL 
June 29, 2017 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF DISPOSITION OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS  

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 

Financial Statement Findings 
None 
 
Major Program Audit Findings 
None 
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FRANKLIN HOUSING AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS  

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 
 
 

 
 

 

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes x No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes x None Reported

Is any noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes x No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes x No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes x None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes x No

Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA #14.850 - Low Rent Public Housing Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x Yes No

Section II - Financial Statement Findings
None

Section III - Federal Award Findings
None

$750,000

Unmodified

Unmodified
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To the Board of Commissioners 
Franklin Housing Authority 

Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedure 
 

We have performed the procedure described in the second paragraph, which was agreed to by the Franklin Housing Authority 
(the Housing Authority) and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Real Estate Assessment Center (REAC), 
solely to assist them in determining whether the electronic submission of certain information agrees with related hard copy 
documents included within the Single Audit reporting package.  The Housing Authority is responsible for the accuracy and 
completeness of the electronic submission.  This agreed upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with 
attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  The sufficiency of the procedure is 
solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedure described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 
 

We compared the electronic submission of the items listed in the “UFRS Rule Information” column with the corresponding 
printed documents listed in the “Hard Copy Documents” column.  The results of the performance of our agreed-upon procedure 
indicate agreement or non-agreement of electronically submitted information and hard copy documents as shown in the chart 
below. 
 

We were engaged to perform an audit in accordance with 2 CFR 200 Subpart F, Audit Requirements, for the Housing Authority 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and have issued our reports thereon dated June 29, 2017.  The information in the 
“Hard Copy Documents” column was included within the scope, or was a by-product, of that audit.  Further, our opinion on the 
fair presentation of the Housing Authority’s Financial Data Schedule (FDS) dated June 29, 2017, was expressed in relation to the 
basic financial statements of the Housing Authority taken as a whole. 
 

A copy of the reporting package required by OMB, which includes the auditor’s reports, is available in its entirety from the 
Housing Authority.  We have not performed any additional auditing procedures since the date of the aforementioned audit 
reports.  Further, we take no responsibility for the security of the information transmitted electronically to the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development, REAC. 
 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Housing Authority and the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development, REAC, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

Procedure UFRS Rule Information Hard Copy Documents Agrees 
Does Not 

Agree 

1 Balance Sheet and Revenue and Expense 
Financial Data Schedule, 
all CFDAs, If applicable X   

2 Footnotes 
Footnotes to audited basic financial 
statements X   

3 Type of opinion on FDS 
Auditor's supplemental report on 
FDS X   

4 Audit findings narrative 
Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs X   

5 General Information OMB Data Collection Form X   

6 Financial Statement report information 

Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs, Part 1 and OMB 
Data Collection Form X   

7 Federal program report information 

Schedule of Findings and 
Questioned Costs, Part 1 and OMB 
Data Collection Form X   

8 Type of Compliance Requirement OMB Data Collection Form X    

9 

Basic financial statements and auditor 
reports required to be submitted 
electronically 

Basic financial statements 
(inclusive of auditor reports) X   

 
Henderson & DeJohn, LLC 
Birmingham, AL      
June 29, 2017 

37 






	COF Forms
	Financials - Audit
	Programs
	Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Position
	There were no major capital asset disposals during the current fiscal year.
	Financial Contact
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
	The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
	The financial statements of the Franklin Housing Authority (the “Authority”) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is t...
	J. Compensated Absences
	The Authority’s policy allows each employee to accumulate up to 240 vacation hours and be paid for them upon separation.  Employees can accrue unlimited sick leave hours, but cannot be paid for any accumulated hours upon separation.  The majority of e...
	M. Use of Estimates
	N. Income Taxes
	O. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
	NOTE 3 – CAPITAL ASSETS


	IRS Exempt Letter



